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Dear Friends of Ivy Tech:

on behalf of the Trustees of Ivy Tech community college, I am 
pleased to present the college’s 2007-2008 financial Report.

as evidenced by this document, 2007-08 was another positive 
year for the college. The financial statements highlight the 
college’s strong fiscal health. chancellors, administrators and 
finance directors across the system have been conscientious  
in controlling expenditures and stretching available resources.  
The college continues to regard the funding it receives as a  
public trust. 

I’m especially delighted to inform you that the college’s financial 
status not only is sound, but was recently upgraded by Standard & 
Poor’s from a+ to aa-. In turn, fitch Ratings recently re-affirmed 
the aa- rating previously assigned to the college.

This vote of confidence from objective evaluators allows us to 
proceed with measured confidence in plans to accommodate the 
galloping demand for higher education among Indiana residents. 
This year alone, an estimated 119,000 hoosiers chose Ivy Tech 
as their gateway to higher education or path to more immediate 
career advancement. 

enrollment this fall has continued to increase, fueled by Ivy Tech’s 
affordability, transferable credits, supportive learning environment, 
and nimble response to workforce needs. 

although some observers have pegged this growth to the 
nation’s sobering economic situation, I think it more 
accurately reflects a pent-up demand for the convenience 
and access a community college provides. The people 
of Indiana have waited a long time for this enormous 
opportunity, and they are taking advantage of it.

members of the Ivy Tech family – the students, faculty, 
staff, state and regional trustees, and foundation board 
members – are excited by the magnitude of growth and 
the pace of change at the college. 

We believe that, with your input and your support, 
the best is yet to come.

Sincerely,

Tom Snyder
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october 21, 2008

To the President and State Board of Trustees of Ivy Tech community college

on behalf of all those individuals responsible for the financial stewardship of college resources, I am pleased 
to present the Ivy Tech community college annual financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2008.

The report has been prepared in conformance with authoritative reporting standards and guidelines for colleges 
and universities. This report utilizes governmental accounting Standards Board Statement no. 35, Basic 
financial Statement and management’s discussion and analysis for Public colleges and universities.  
an analysis is included which compares 2007-08 figures with the prior year.
 
The report contains data, which is consolidated for all college locations as well as statements and schedules 
listed in the table of contents.

The Indiana State Board of accounts has audited the financial statements. Their audit opinion on the financial 
statements is a part of this report.

The final schedule provides information on student enrollment. The data is for five years and provides users of 
this report statistics relative to students enrolled in education provided by this college.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert c. holmes
vice President for finance/Treasurer
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IndePendenT audIToR’S RePoRT

To: The offIcIalS of Ivy Tech communITy college, IndIanaPolIS, IndIana

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Ivy Tech community college, a component unit of the 
State of Indiana, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the college’s management. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the component unit of the college as discussed in note 1, which 
represents 100% of the assets and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. The financial statements of this 
component unit were audited by another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to this unit, is based upon the report of the other auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united States of america and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in government auditing Standards, issues by the comptroller 
general of the united States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. an audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. an audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ivy Tech community college, as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and 
the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the united States of america.

In accordance with government auditing Standards, we have also issues our report dated october 24, 2008, on our 
consideration of Ivy Tech community college’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with government auditing Standards, and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. This report will be issued in the university’s Single audit report prepared in accordance with omB 
circular a-133. 

The management’s discussion and analysis (md&a) is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is 
supplementary information required by the governmental accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurements and 
presentation of the supplementary information. however, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

STaTe BoaRd of accounTS

october 24, 2008
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Management’s Discussion
and Analysis

This section of Ivy Tech community college’s annual 
financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the 
financial performance of the college for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2008, along with comparative data for the 
year ending June 30, 2007. The management’s discussion 
and analysis provides summary level financial information; 
therefore, it should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying financial statements and note disclosures.  
The management’s discussion and analysis is designed to 
focus on current activities, significant changes, and currently 
known facts. The financial statements, notes, and this 
discussion are the responsibility of management.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, 
prepared in accordance with the governmental accounting 
Standards Board Statement no. 35, Basic financial Statements 
— and management’s discussion and analysis — for Public  
colleges and universities, an amendment of gaSB Statement 
no. 34. The financial statements focus on the financial condition 
of the college, the results of operations, and cash flows of the 
college as a whole.

one of the most important questions asked about the college’s 
finances is whether the college is better or worse as a result 
of this year’s activity. The keys to understanding that question 
are the Statement of net assets, Statement of Revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net assets, and the Statement of 
cash flows. These statements present financial information 
in a form similar to that used by corporations. The college’s 
net assets are one indicator of the college’s financial strength. 
over time, increases or decreases in net assets is one indicator 
of the improvement or erosion of the college’s financial health 
when considered with non-financial facts such as enrollment 
levels and the condition of facilities.

The Statement of net assets includes all assets and liabilities. 
It is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby 
revenues and assets are recognized when the service is provided  
and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide  
the service to the college, regardless of when cash is exchanged.

The Statement of Revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
assets presents the revenues earned and expenses incurred 
during the year. activities are reported as either operating 
or nonoperating. The authoritative financial reporting model 
classifies State appropriations and gifts as nonoperating 
revenues; therefore such a classification results in an operating 
deficit being shown in this statement. The utilization of  
long-lived assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in 
the financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the 
cost of an asset over its expected useful life



9

Financial Highlights

Ivy Tech community college’s financial position remains 
strong as net assets grew by $10.6 million. This continues 
a trend that began several years ago. Since 2002, net assets 
have grown from $171.4 million to $269.3 million, an increase 
of 57%.  

driven by increasing enrollments, total operating revenues for 
2007-08 grew by $19.9 million to $178.4 million as compared 
to $158.5 million in the prior fiscal year. While final figures 
are not yet in, both total credit enrollment and total full 
time equivalent (fTe) credit enrollment are expected to set 
new records. Total credit enrollment is estimated to exceed 
119,000 students, while fTe enrollment is projected to top 
49,000. This led to a $19.0 million increase in gross student 
fee revenue despite only increasing student fee rates by 3.9%. 
growth in auxiliary enterprise revenues also contributed to 
the growth in operating revenues. It should be noted that  
in June 2008, Ivy Tech entered into a formal partnership  
with follett higher education group, Inc. (follett) whereby 
follett will operate the college’s bookstores. The college  
will receive a sliding percentage of gross sales, thus freeing  
up resources that were previously dedicated to the operation 
of the bookstores.

net non-operating revenues grew from $238.9 million in 
2006-07 to $268.3 million in 2007-08, an increase of $29.4 
million. State appropriations and restricted grants are the 
primary components of this category. In 2007-08 state 
appropriations grew by $17.1 million to a total of $175.4 
million. The college is grateful to the State of Indiana for 
placing a high priority on funding the enrollment change 
formula and for continuing to fund debt service costs for 
new academic facilities. This is critical for a rapidly growing 
institution. It is also important to note that the State 
continued to repay the funds that it had withheld from 
the college and other public higher education institutions 

beginning in the 2001-03 biennuim. In 2007-08 Ivy Tech 
received $3.1 million of the previous deferral. This came  
on top of the $4.6 million that was repaid in 2006-07.  
The final $3.1 million is scheduled to be repaid in 2008-09. 
additionally governmental grants and contracts increased  
by $12.5 million from the previous year. 

operating expenses were $437.1 million for fiscal year 2008, 
an increase of $51.9 million over 2006-07. This increase was 
primarily related to serving the college’s growing enrollment 
and a large increase in scholarships and fellowships of 6.2 
million. In addition it includes costs related to the continuing 
implementation of Banner, the college’s new enterprise 
resource planning software system. during 2007-08, the 
college went live with the finance and the student system 
modules. The human resources system is scheduled to go live 
in 2008-09, the advancement module is planned to go live in 
2008-09 and the foundation finance module is scheduled for 
2009-10. 

In the capital area, construction continued on new academic 
buildings in madison, marion, and valparaiso. The college 
expects to begin offering classes in the new facilities in 
fall semester 2008. during 2007-08, the State Budget 
committee and governor approved the release of bonding 
authority previously approved by the general assembly for 
new academic buildings in fort Wayne, logansport, and 
greencastle. The completion of these projects will reduce 
overcrowding and significantly improve the college’s presence 
in these three communities. The Series l Bonds that will 
finance the construction of these projects were sold in early 
2008-09.

In conjunction with this bond issue, in early 2008-09, 
Ivy Tech received its highest long-term bond rating from 
Standard and Poor’s, advancing from an “a+” with a “positive” 
outlook to a “aa-“ with a “stable” outlook. at the same time, 
fitch Ratings reaffirmed its “aa-“ rating and continued with 
a “stable” outlook. 

57%
growth of  
net assets
since 2002 AA-

Bond
Rating 119,000

students
enrolled 17.10 m

growth of state
appropriations
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Condensed statement of net assets

June 30 2008 2007 Restated Percent Change

Current assets $110,973,047 $159,579,911 (30.5)

Noncurrent assets 430,343,597 360,734,313  19.3

Total assets 541,316,644 520,314,224 4.0

Current liabilities 68,734,368 43,997,112  56.2 

Noncurrent liabilities 203,288,606 217,646,552  (6.6)  

Total liabilities 272,022,974 261,643,664   4.0

Net assets

Invested in capital assets,  
net of related debt

139,112,234 96,637,375 44.0

Restricted 23,066,044 55,895,048 (58.7)

Unrestricted 107,115,393 106,138,137 0.9

total net assets $269,293,670 $258,670,560 4.1

Assets

Current Assets
cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash (in banks 
and on hand) and investments with maturity dates of 0-90 
days as of June 30, 2008. Short-term investments include 
those with maturity dates of 91-365 days. The college’s 
policy is to invest available cash balances, and in 2001-02 
this policy was expanded to allow longer-term investments. 
cash and cash equivalents decreased 58% from 2006-07 and 
short-term investments decreased 33%. These categories were 
reduced because the college increased long term investments 
by 438% this year, as compared to the previous year. 

accounts receivable are related to several transactions 
including, but not limited to, state appropriations, student 
and contract tuition and fees, and auxiliary sales. 
accounting standards typically require the establishment of 
an allowance for bad debt in the Statement of net assets 
to reflect receivables that are likely to be uncollectible. 
net accounts receivable increased by 26.4%, mainly due to 
the leasing of the rights for the operations of the college’s 
bookstores to follett higher education group, Inc. (follett), 
which was effective in June 2008 accounts receivable 
increased significantly due to the college returning book 
inventory to publishers.

Inventories decreased by 100% due to the bookstore lease 
agreement including a clause for the purchase of the 
bookstore’s inventory for resale by follett.

The deposits with trustee are $6.6 million, and it is 
anticipated that it will all be used within 2008-09. The 
deposits with trustee are attributable to the Series K 
construction projects for valparaiso Phase II, marion Phase 
I, and madison Phase I in the amount of $6.1 million. The 
remaining balance is attributed to Series I construction for 
valparaiso Phase I, evansville Phase II, Portage architecture 
& engineering, and Series J Richmond Phase II.

Prepaid expenses are payments made in the current or a 
previous fiscal year, and for which we have not realized the 
full value of through fiscal year 2007-08. The prepaid balance 
at June 30, 2008 includes, among other items, payments of 
debt principal and interest totaling $14.0 million. overall 
current assets decreased by $48.6 million which was due 
mainly to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents, short 
term investments, inventories and deposit with trustee. The 
decrease was offset by an increase in net accounts receivable 
in the amount of $11.2 million.

Noncurrent Assets
long-term investments increased by $48.0 million 
from the previous year. This was primarily done to take 
advantage of higher long-term interest rates. deposit with 
trustee decreased 100% due to the anticipation of the entire 
amount to be spent in fiscal year 2008-09. noncurrent 
accounts receivable represents future income related to the 
lease of the rights to operate the college’s bookstore. capital 
assets include land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment, 
deferred losses on debt refunding, and construction work in 
progress. noncurrent assets increased by $69.6 million or a 
19.3% increase from the previous year. 
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Liabilities

Current Liabilities
accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts 
due at June 30, 2008 for goods and services received prior 
to the end of the fiscal year. This category increased 56.8% 
compared to the previous year. accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities increased by $4.7 million due mainly to a 
general increase in accounts payable throughout the college. 
compensated absences and other Post employment Benefits 
(oPeB) ($7.6 million) are the amounts due to employees for 
earned but unpaid vacation/special holidays and accrued 
sick leave payout and the estimated current portion of the 
oPeB. deposits held in custody for others are monies held 
by the college for payroll withholdings ($4.2 million), and 
student clubs ($1.4 million). deferred revenue represents 
monies received in the current year for services, tuition 
and fees, future revenue related to the lease of the college 
bookstores, or goods to be provided by the college in a 
future period. deferred Revenue went up by $9.5 million 
or 79.4%. a major reason for this increase was due to future 
revenues related to the leasing of the rights for the operation 
of the college’s bookstores to follett; the college will receive 
$6.0 million over the term of the agreement. additionally 
the college received restricted grant monies in advance of 
expenditures of $2.4 million. The current portion of debt 

obligation is the portion of the college’s long-term debt 
which is payable within the next fiscal year. This category 
increased by $8.9 million due to a bank loan that will be 
paid off at the november 3, 2008 maturity, the loan will 
be refinanced with proceeds from the series l Bond Issue. 
overall, current liabilities increased by 56.2%, this was 
primarily due to the large increases in the current portion of 
debt obligation and deferred revenue.

Noncurrent Liabilities
noncurrent liabilities will be paid one year or later from 
the date of the Statement of net assets. The college’s 
noncurrent liabilities include compensated absences, 
notes and bonds payable, and other long-term obligations. 
noncurrent liabilities decreased by $14.4 million mainly due 
to a decrease of ($17.6) million) in long term debt and other 
obligations and an increase in other Post employments 
Benefits ($2.6 million). The reduction in long term debt and 
other obligations was made up of the transfer of the bank 
loan ($9.9 million) and the current portion of the bonds to 
current liabilities. The governmental accounting Standards 
Board (gaSB) Statement 45 accounting and financial 
Reporting by employers for Postemployment Benefits other 
than Pensions became effective for the college this year. The 
current liability is $.6 million and the long-term portion is $2.6 
million for a total liability of $3.2 million.

outstanding debt at YeaR end

6/30/2008 6/30/2007
increase 

(decrease)
Percent Change

Leases, notes, and bonds payable:

Revenue bonds payable:

Series E student fee bonds      $6,540,000    $7,575,000 $(1,035,000) -13.7%

Series G student fee bonds      30,050,000    33,505,000 (3,455,000) -10.3%

Series H student fee bonds      40,305,000    42,615,000 (2,310,000) -5.4%

Series I student fee bonds      36,820,000    38,430,000 (1,610,000) -4.2%

Series J student fee bonds       9,245,000     9,245,000 - 0.0%

Series K student fee bonds      58,760,000    60,670,000 (1,910,000) -3.1%

Total bonds payable     181,720,000   192,040,000 (10,320,000) -5.4%

Premium on bonds - H,I,J & K       5,912,596     6,339,046 (426,450) -6.7%

Lease Obligations      13,453,020    11,750,448 1,702,572 14.5%

Notes Payable      17,135,000    18,215,000 (1,080,000) -5.9%

total leases, notes, and bonds payable    $218,220,616  $228,344,494 $(10,123,878) -4.4%
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Net Assets

net assets represent the difference between the college’s assets and liabilities. The classification “invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt” (which includes building and equipment less depreciation, land owned by the college, and construction 
work in progress) increased by 44.0% over the prior year. consequently, the restricted “capital projects” classification decreased 
by 58.8% from the prior year this was due to the capitalization of three building projects in the current year. unrestricted net 
assets increased .9%. overall net assets increased in fiscal 2007-08 by $10.6 million.

Internally Designated Reserves of Unrestricted Funds

The college ended the fiscal year with an unrestricted net asset balance of $107.1 million, an increase of $977 thousand, 
or .9% as compared to the prior fiscal year. The following provides additional information concerning the allocation of the 
unrestricted net assets.

description fY 2008 amount fY 2007amount

Auxiliary Enterprise Bookstores $23,083,392 $22,955,416

Economic Development Revolving Loan 4,918,333 4,557,666

Student Accounts Receivable 4,903,696 4,417,393

Insurance Stabilization 3,120,655 2,949,480

Debt Service Cash Flow Reserve 5,792,107 4,400,362

Parking Lot Repair and Replacement 3,484,706 3,228,602

Compensated Absences Reserve 7,085,586 5,748,177

Other Post Employment Benefits 5,119,675 3,875,881

Technology Acquisition 17,027 42,711

Payroll Reserve 1,084,191 903,616

Enterprise Software Replacement 3,209,218 5,101,078

Lawrenceburg Financial Aid 36,160 43,276

Unclaimed Property 1,069,978 823,947

Student Loan Fund 53,860 57,758

Operating Budget 44,136,809 47,032,774

total $107,115,393 $106,138,137

The college operated bookstores at twelve of its fourteen regional campuses. The bookstores’ net assets shown above were 
mainly used to maintain those operations. effective 06/30/08, all college bookstores have been leased to follett higher 
education group, Inc.

The economic development Revolving loan fund is primarily used within the college to acquire equipment necessary to 
rapidly implement training programs relative to economic development as well as other college initiatives. This fund is a 
revolving fund and is paid back over time by the college site originally granted the loan.

2008 analYsis of net assets

Invested in Capital Assets,  
Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted Capital Projects

51.7%
39.8%

8.5%

$107,115,393

$139,112,234

$23,008,492
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The college does not recognize certain student accounts 
receivable balances for budget purposes. after they have been 
collected, they are recognized for budgetary purposes and 
therefore available for expenditure.

The insurance stabilization reserve was established in the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 1994. The interest earned on 
this reserve has been used to reduce the amount of health 
insurance increases that must be passed on to the employees 
of the college. 

debt Service cash flow Reserve is used to partially 
offset the bond debt service payments made until they are 
reimbursed by the state of Indiana.

The parking lot repair and replacement reserve is funded 
with a college designated portion of student fee collections. 
currently seventy-five cents ($.75) per student credit hour is 
designated to assist the funding of repairing, maintaining, 
and providing new parking lots throughout the college.

The compensated absences reserve was established to offset 
the college’s compensated absences liability. This benefit 
is discussed in more detail in the notes to the financial 
Statements, section vII.

The other Post employment Benefits cash reserve was 
established in fiscal year 2005-06 to offset the college’s 
other post employment benefit liability. This reserve was 
established in advance of the reporting requirements of gaSB 
Statement no. 45, accounting and financial Reporting by 
employers for Postemployment Benefits other Than Pensions. 
The reporting requirements of gaSB 45 are applicable to the 
college at fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. an actuarial 
estimate was obtained by the college for the period 
06/30/08. as a result of this estimate, the college reported 
an oPeB an expense are corresponding liability in the 
amount of $3.2 million for 2007-08.

The technology acquisition reserve is the balance of 
a State appropriation received to assist the college in 
acquiring and maintaining technology related items.

The college pays hourly employees bi-weekly. Therefore, 
every eleven years the college pays employees twenty-seven 
times in one year instead of the normal twenty-six. This 
payroll reserve is to pay for the additional payroll.

The enterprise software replacement reserve has 
been established to assist the college in replacing the 
enterprise-wide software programs. The current enterprise 
software programs are outdated and implementation of the 
new Banner software system is currently underway.

In fiscal year 2003-04 the city of lawrenceburg paid 
$2,875,000 to pay off a loan on the college’s building in 
lawrenceburg. In appreciation of the city’s generosity, 
the college dedicated an initial amount of $375,000 for 
financial aid purposes for Ivy Tech students attending the 
lawrenceburg campus. The amount shown represents the 
balance that is remaining. a committee of college and city 
officials developed guidelines for the use of these monies to 
assure that citizens in the lawrenceburg area receive the 
benefit of this financial aid.

State law allows the college to maintain unclaimed property. 
The unclaimed properties are checks that have not been 
cashed and are greater than two-years old. The payees may 
claim these checks upon the filing of a claim and proof of 
identity.

The college maintains a loan fund for the purpose of making 
short-term loans to students. The funds are derived from a 
number of different sources.

The operating budget is the remaining amount of the 
unrestricted net assets available for expenditure in the  
next fiscal year.
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CaPital assets, net, at YeaR-end

Restated  
6/30/2008 6/30/2007 increase (decrease) Percent Change

Construction Work In Progress $10,600,615 $40,496,562 $(29,895,947) -73.8%

Land, Improvements, and Infrastructure 23,302,744 22,816,363 486,381 2.1%

Buildings 313,010,639 261,033,851 51,976,788 19.9% 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 20,171,724 15,225,898 4,945,826 32.5%

Library materials 253,185 123,088 130,097 105.7%

totals $367,338,907 $339,695,762 $27,643,145 8.1%

during fiscal year 2007-08 net capital assets increased by $27,643,145 or 8.1%. The major changes were from the capitalization of 
the marion project of $12.7 million, the madison project of $11.7 million, and the valparaiso Phase II project of $8.2 million 
and the increased expenses related to on-going construction projects. In addition, the college capitalized $3.8 million for the 
new college administrative Software project. The college is in the process of implementing a new administrative software 
system and the finance and Student systems went live in fiscal year 2007-08.

The college’s credit rating assigned by Standard and Poor’s as of June 2007 was a+ with a positive outlook. fitch Ratings 
assigned a rating of aa- with a stable outlook. In early 2008-09, Standard and Poor’s increased the college’s rating to aa- 
with a stable outlook.

Condensed statement of Revenues, exPenses and Changes in net assets

Year ended June 30 2008 Restated 2007 Percent Change

Operating revenue

Tuition and fees, net $116,704,447 $102,505,313 13.9

Grants and contracts   19,985,771   22,692,994 (11.9)

Auxiliary services, net   34,809,725   29,048,009 19.8

Other 6,887,683 4,219,071 63.3

Total operating revenue  178,387,625  158,465,387 12.6

Operating expense  437,113,685  385,236,056  13.5

Operating income (loss)  (258,726,060)  (226,770,669) (14.1)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)

State appropriations  175,441,003  158,354,723 10.8

Governmental Grants and Contracts   93,780,608   81,234,699 15.4

Other nonoperating revenue (expense) (959,441)    (718,619) 33.5

Net nonoperating revenue  268,262,170  238,870,803  12.3

Income before other revenue, expenses, gains, or losses 9,536,110   12,100,134   (21.2)

Capital appropriations/Gifts 1,087,000 3,536,826 (69.3)

Total increase in net assets

  10,623,110    15,636,960 (32.1)

Net assets

Net assets - beginning of year  258,670,560   243,033,600 6.4

net assets - end of year $269,293,670 $258,670,560 4.1
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Revenues

Operating Revenues
Total operating revenues for fiscal year 2007-08 were $178 million, representing a 12.6% increase compared to the prior year. 
The following chart and analysis illustrate the details. 

Tuition and Fees
Student tuition and fees include all fees assessed for educational purposes. Scholarship discounts and allowances represent 
the difference between the stated fee rates and the amount that is paid by the students and/or third party payers. The vast 
majority of the scholarship discounts is paid to the college in the form of federal and State student financial aid. net student 
fee revenue shows a 13.9% increase over 2006-07 due to a full-time equivalent enrollment increase of 6.4%, student fee 
increases of 3.9%, increases in incidental fees, and increases in non-credit instruction.

Grants and Contracts
grants and contracts include restricted revenues made available by federal, state, local, and nongovernmental grants and 
contracts. In total, this revenue increased 9.5% from 2006-07. federal sources increased 14.3%, state sources increased 1.8%, 
and private sources decreased 9.0%. 

2007-08 2006-07 Percent Change

Federal sources

Financial aid $80,204,774 $70,001,493 14.6%

Other federal agencies   2,211,273 2,076,242 6.5%

 Total federal sources  82,416,047 72,077,735 14.3%

State sources

Financial aid  13,942,975 12,251,322 13.8%

Grants and Contracts   8,455,045 9,757,335 (13.3)%

Total state sources  22,398,020 22,008,657 1.8%

Private sources   8,952,311 9,841,301 (9.0)%

total all sources $113,766,378 $103,927,693 9.5%

4% Other Operating Revenue

11% Grants and Contracts

20% Auxilary Services, Net

65% Student Tuition and Fees, Net



16

Auxiliary Enterprises

auxiliary enterprises are intended to be self-supporting 
and supplement the operations of the college. Bookstore, 
Parking lot, and insurance stabilization are the auxiliary 
enterprises for Ivy Tech community college. The total 
auxiliary enterprise revenue was $39.2 million with a 
scholarship allowance of $4.4 million. The vast majority of 
the scholarship allowance is paid to the bookstores in the 
form of federal student financial aid. net auxiliary enterprise 
revenue increased 19.8% over prior years, which was due in 
part to the enrollment increase.

an agreement was entered into between the college and 
follett higher education group, Inc. (follett) effective in 
June 2008. This agreement allows for the operation of the 
college’s bookstores by follett. The term of the agreement is 
through June 30, 2016, with an automatic renewal for one (1) 
two-year renewal term of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018. 
In return for the right to operate the bookstores, the college 
received a one time payment spread out over the term of the 
agreement, rent payments based on a percentage of gross 
revenue and a commitment for store improvements. 
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Operating Expenses

The operating expenses are presented on the financial statements using natural classifications: salaries and wages, benefits, 
scholarships and fellowships, utilities, supplies and other services, and depreciation. The following schedule shows expenses 
based on college functional categories.

                                                                       
exPenses bY funCtion 

2007-08 2006-07

Instruction $157,057,310 $139,611,759

Public service 2,087,844 2,803,921

Academic support 26,323,244 26,209,878

Student services 23,362,048 21,368,176

Institutional support 86,381,322 73,336,435

Operation and maintenance of plant 24,413,854 24,246,407

Scholarships and fellowships 63,822,228 54,439,359

Auxiliaries 34,545,553 27,259,681

Depreciation and Amortization 19,120,282 15,960,440

total $437,113,685 $385,236,056

as a percentage of total expenses academic Support and Student Services decreased slightly and Scholarships and fellowships and 
auxiliaries increased slightly as compared to the prior year. all other categories remained relatively flat as a percentage of the total. 

4%
depr. & amort. 

36% 
Instruction

1%
Public Service

6% 
academic Support

8%
auxiliaries

15%
Scholarships and 

fellowships 

6%
operation and 
maint. of Plant

19%
Institutional Support 5%

Student Services

2008 funCtional exPenses
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Nonoperating Revenue And Expense

The State of Indiana provides appropriations based on a biennial budget for higher education. The college recognized 
$175.4 million of State appropriations for fiscal year 2007-08. This is an increase of 11.3% from the previous year. due to 
an accounting principal change restricted governmental grants and contracts are considered nonoperating revenue instead 
of operating revenue. This category increased by $12.5 million. Investment income, which is the earnings from pooled cash 
and plant investments, decreased from 2006-07 by $1.8 million. Interest expense on capital asset-related debt is the interest 
paid on bond debt and interim financing. Student government support is the college’s designated amount to support student 
government. 

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, or Losses

capital appropriations decreased by $2.5 million, mainly due to receiving construction planning money in the prior year and 
none in the current year.

Statement of Cash Flows

another way to assess the financial condition of an institution is to look at the statement of cash flows. Its primary purpose is 
to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an entity during a period. The Statement of cash 
flows also helps users assess:

•	 an entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows
•	 it’s ability to meet its obligations as they come due
•	 it’s need for external financing

Condensed statement of Cash flows

Year ended June 30 2008 Restated 2007

Cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities $(232,094,634) $(208,575,587)

Noncapital financing activities 283,323,339   244,519,188

Capital and related financing activities   (42,825,855)   (33,673,587)

Investing activities   (34,219,171)   (3,832,573)

Net increase (decrease) in cash      (25,816,321)    (1,562,559) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year   44,526,445    46,089,004 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year $ 18,710,124   $44,526,445

for the college’s financial statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash plus investments with maturity dates 
less than 90 days. cash and cash equivalents decreased by 58% this fiscal year.  This was due to an increase in long term 
investments.

according to the authoritative guidance from the governmental accounting Standards Board, state appropriations are to be 
shown as a non-capital financing activity and not as cash provided by operating activities. This will always result in showing 
more cash being used for operating activities than cash being provided. 
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Factors Impacting Future 
Periods

as an open-access public institution with a goal of keeping 
the cost of higher education affordable, the economic 
health of the college is closely tied to the State of Indiana. 
although the national economy has begun to slow, the 
State of Indiana’s financial position continued to improve in 
2007-08. Revenues exceeded expenditures and the State of 
Indiana general fund and Property Tax Replacement fund 
combined Statement of estimated unappropriated Reserve 
grew to $1.382 billion after deducting the remaining Payment 
delay liability. Standard and Poor’s followed with an increase 
in the State’s credit rating to aaa, the highest level possible. 
despite this favorable economic performance, the State of 
Indiana still faces significant challenges as it transitions to a 
more knowledge based economy.

Total State funding for Ivy Tech community college 
again increased as compared to the previous year. State 
operating appropriations grew by $9.1 million. The college 
also received the total amount appropriated for general 
Repair and Rehabilitation (R & R) in 2007-08. Total state 
appropriations including debt service funding grew by $17.1 
million to a total of $175.4 million. In addition, the State 
continued to repay funds that had been deferred since the 
2001-03 biennium. That biennial budget had authorized 
the State Budget agency to distribute eleven-twelfths of 
the budgeted amount for the 2001-02 fiscal year. Similar 
language in the 2003-05 and 2005-07 budget bills allowed 
this deferral to be carried forward. In 2006-07, the general 
assembly appropriated $40 million to the State’s public 
colleges and universities for general repair and rehabilitation 
needs. By statute, distribution of those funds reduced the 
one-month appropriation delay. Ivy Tech’s share of this $40 
million was $4.6 million. In 2007-08, Ivy Tech received an 
additional $3.1 million of Payment delay R & R funds. The 
college is scheduled to receive the final $3.1 million owed by 
the State in 2008-09.

across the State, 2007-08 was another record setting year 
for Ivy Tech community college enrollment. once again, 
both headcount and fulltime equivalent (fTe) enrollment 
grew in all regions across the State. Preliminary estimates 
indicate a total enrollment of over 119,000 students. full time 
equivalent enrollment is expected to top 49,000 when final 
count is completed. 2007-08 marks the twelfth consecutive 
year that the college’s full time equivalent enrollment has 
grown. This led to an increase in student fee revenue of 
$19.0 million despite a fee rate increase that was lowest of 
the seven Indiana public higher education institutions. early 
indications are that strong enrollment growth has continued 
during the 2008 fall semester.

at the college’s request, in 2007-08 the commission for 
higher education recommended and the State Budget 
committee and governor approved the release of bonding 
authority appropriated by the general assembly for new 
capital projects in fort Wayne, logansport, and greencastle. 
Planning and construction of these projects has begun and 
bonds (Series l) were sold in early 2008-09. When the three 
projects noted above are completed, the college’s academic 
facilities in those communities will be greatly improved.

about the time of the Series l bond sale in 2008-09, the 
commission for higher education recommended and the 
State Budget committee and governor approved the release 
of bonding authority for additional projects in elkhart and 
Sellersburg. upon completion, these new facilities will 
further enhance the college’s ability to serve the educational 
needs of hoosiers.

also it should be noted, that in June 2008, the college 
entered into a partnership with follett higher education 
group, Inc. whereby follett will operate the college’s 
bookstores. In return, the college will receive a sliding 
percentage of gross sales. This will have the advantage of 
freeing up college resources that were previously dedicated 
to the operation of the bookstores.

In conclusion, the college’s financial position continues to be 
strong. This strength was recognized in early 2008-09 when 
Standard and Poor’s upgraded the college’s bond rating to 
“aa-“ with a “Stable” outlook. fitch Ratings reaffirmed its 
“aa-“ rating and continued the “Stable” outlook.
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gRoss student fee Revenue
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Gross Student Fee Revenue has increased 166% since 200-2001.

Authorized Facilities

during the 2007 general assembly, the college received bonding authority totaling $162,870,000 and cash appropriations 
of $350,000 for new capital facilities. Projects receiving bonding authority include elkhart ($16,000,000), Warsaw a & e 
($1,000,000), fort Wayne Technology center and demolition costs ($26,700,000), logansport ($16,000,000), muncie/
anderson a & e ($4,800,000), greencastle ($8,000,000), Indianapolis fall creek expansion ($69,370,000), lamkin 
center ($1,000,000), and Sellersburg ($20,000,000). In addition, the college received a cash appropriation of $350,000 for 
Bloomington a & e. Prior to proceeding with any of these projects, the college must receive further authorization from the 
commission for higher education, the State Budget committee, and the governor. consequently the timing for the financing 
and construction of these projects is not known at this time.
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

statement of net assets
June 30, 2008 with Comparative figures at June 30, 2007

assets fY 2008 Restated fY 2007
Current assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents     $18,710,124    $44,526,445 
Short Term Investments      17,509,060     25,999,060 
Accounts Receivable      57,746,711     45,931,396

Allowance for Bad Debt 
Inventories

     (4,058,578)
- 

     (3,449,137)
     7,522,455 

Deposit with Trustee       6,550,200     23,921,475 
Prepaid Expenses     14,515,531    15,128,217 
total Current assets     110,973,048    159,579,911 

Noncurrent Assets
Long-Term Investments      59,004,690     10,971,740
Deposit with Trustee -      7,004,738
Accounts Receivable       4,000,000      3,062,071
Capital Assets, Net    367,338,907    339,695,764 
total noncurrent assets    430,343,597    360,734,313

total assets    541,316,645    520,314,224 

liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities      13,009,046      8,299,125
Compensated Absences       6,935,100      6,447,424 

Other Post Employment Benefits        638,353         -
Deposits Held in Custody for Others       5,581,035      5,049,622 
Deferred Revenue      21,450,570     11,955,371 
Current Portion of Debt Obligation      21,120,264     12,245,570
total Current liabilities      68,734,368     43,997,112 

noncurrent liabilities
Compensated Absences       3,619,174      2,944,231
Long Term Debt and other Obligations     197,100,352    214,702,321 

Other Post Employment Benefits   2,569,081 -
total noncurrent liabilities     203,288,607    217,646,552

total liabilities    272,022,975    261,643,664

net assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt     139,112,234     96,637,375
Restricted:

Expendable
Capital Projects      23,008,492      55,840,265
Endowment         57,551         54,783 

Unrestricted Note     107,115,393    106,138,137 

total net assets    $269,293,670   $258,670,560 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ivY teCh foundation, inC.

statements of assets, liabilities and fund balanCes-modified Cash basis
June 30, 2008 and 2007

assets 2008 Restated 2007

Cash      $ 4,364,631 $ 5,976,041

Investments       37,017,650 36,203,488

Property and Equipment held for lease       16,371,380 11,830,511

Transferred Assets Held in Community Foundations       852,856 851,466

total assets       58,606,517 54,861,506

liabilities

Notes Payable 5,903,292 6,035,018

Annuity Payment liability 132,059 129,185

Total Liabilities 6,035,351 6,164,203

fund balanCes

Unrestricted       11,768,758 8,905,351

Restricted: 

Expendable 22,702,153 22,164,491

Nonexpendable 18,100,255 17,627,461

Total Restricted 40,802,408 39,791,952

Total Fund Balances 52,571,166 48,697,303

total liabilities and fund balanCes $58,606,517 $54,861,506

See accompanying notes.
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

statement of Revenues, exPenses and Changes in net assets
Year ended June 30, 2008 with Comparative figures at June 30, 2007

Revenues fY 2008 Restated fY 2007

operating Revenues

Student Tuition and Fees $150,324,860 $131,360,905

Scholarship Allowances (33,620,413) (28,855,592)

Net Student Tuition and Fees 116,704,447 102,505,313

Federal Grants and Contracts 2,543,755 3,070,909

State and Local Grants and Contracts 8,489,705 9,780,784

Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 8,952,311 9,841,301

Sales and Services of Educational Departments 134,110 180,964

Auxiliary Enterprises 39,169,250 32,732,370

Scholarship Allowances (4,359,525) (3,684,361)

Net Auxiliary Enterprises 34,809,725 29,048,009

Other Operating Revenues 6,753,572 4,038,107

total oPeRating Revenues 178,387,625 158,465,387 

exPenses

operating expenses

Salaries and Wages 174,858,943 157,037,246

Benefits 55,740,508 47,835,314

Scholarships and Fellowships 63,822,228 57,631,575

Utilities 7,547,276 6,111,785

Supplies and Other Services 116,024,448 100,659,697

Depreciation 18,802,611 15,673,747 

Amortization of Deferred Loss on Refunding 317,671 286,692 

total oPeRating exPenses 437,113,685 385,236,056 

Operating Loss  (258,726,060) (226,770,669)

nonoPeRating Revenues (exPenses)

State Appropriations 175,441,003 158,354,723

Investment Income 5,954,744 7,759,471

Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (6,194,866) (7,827,743)

Governmental Grants and Contracts-Federal 79,872,292 69,006,826

Governmental Grants and Contracts-State 13,908,316 12,227,873

Student Government Support (719,319) (650,347)

net nonoPeRating Revenues 268,262,170 238,870,803

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses,

Gains, or Losses 9,536,110 12,100,134

Capital Gifts and Grants 87,000

Capital Appropriations 1,000,000 3,536,826 

Total Other Revenues 1,087,000 3,536,826

inCRease in net assets 10,623,110 15,636,960 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 258,670,561 243,033,600 

net assets - end of Year $269,293,670 $258,670,560 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ivY teCh foundation, inC.

statements of Revenues, exPenses and Changes in fund balanCes 
modified Cash basis

Years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

 

Revenue, gains and suPPoRt unrestricted  2008 Restricted total unrestricted
Restated 2007 

Restricted
total

Contributions

Expendable $18,315 $5,734,250 $5,752,565 $5,732,462 $5,732,462

Nonexpendable 644,021 644,021 2,138,208 2,138,208

Non-cash 1,020,000 1,020,000 $700,000 700,000

Investment Income 1,190,162 1,178,875 2,369,037 1,398,762 977,359 2,376,121

Lease Income

Vending Income 227,023 277,515 504,538 206,541 262,172 468,713

Special events income, net of expenses of 
$154,743 in 2008 and $63,293 in 2007

(18,457) (18,457) (49,078) (49,078)

Grant Revenue 542,430 542,430 338,696 338,696

Royalties 56,815 56,815 58,692 58,692

Real Estate Rental Income 837,908 837,908 729,346 729,346

Realized Gain on Sale of Property (955) (955) 216,970 216,970

Change in value of split-interest agreements

Miscellaneous Revenue - 14,459 14,459 74,564 31,226 105,790

3,292,453 8,429,908 11,722,361 3,326,183 9,489,737 12,815,920

Net assets released from restrictions 1,044,854 (1,044,854) - - - -

Total Revenue, Gains and Support 4,337,307 7,385,054 11,722,361 3,326,183  9,489,737 12,815,920

exPenses

Financial Aid to students 1,986,820 1,986,820 1,344,147 1,344,147

Instructional Supplies and equipment 819,348 819,348 4,495,978 4,495,978

Faculty and Staff Development 980 73,386 74,366 100 89,166 89,266

Employee Recognition 11,399 15,411 26,810 8,893 23,762 32,655

Special Programs 2,863,815 2,863,815 4,032,957 4,032,957

Community Outreach/Promotional Expense 115,265 243,168 358,433 101,545 252,614 354,159

Donations to Ivy Tech Community College 71,188 185,529 256,717 64,170 117,113 181,283

Annuity Obligations 5,104 5,104 5,270 5,270

Real Estate Rental Expenses 715,560 715,560 699,666 699,666

Miscellaneous Expenses 66,188 66,188

Other Real Estate Expenses 127,523 127,523 56,739 56,739

Total College Assistance Program Expenses 980,580 6,320,104 7,300,684 874,374 10,417,746 11,292,120

Administrative Expenses 453,300 6,590 459,890 350,716 8,343 359,059

Fundraising Expenses 40,020 47,904 87,924 48,580 29,967 78,547

Total Expenses 1,473,900 6,374,598 7,848,498 1,273,670 10,456,056 11,729,726

exCess of Revenue oveR exPenses 2,863,407 1,010,456 3,873,863 2,052,513 (966,319) 1,086,194

fund balanCes

Beginning of Year 8,905,351 39,791,952 48,697,303 6,852,838 40,758,271 47,611,109

end of Year $11,768,758 $40,802,408 $52,571,166 $8,905,351 $39,791,952 $48,697,303
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

statement of Cash flows
for the Year ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows fRom (foR) oPeRating aCtivities fY 2008 Restated fY 2007

Tuition and Fees $ 119,872,778 $128,611,400

Gifts, Grants, and Contracts 20,131,536 24,954,443

Auxiliary Enterprises 54,745,967 32,476,860

Sales and Services of Educational Departments 180,190 180,964

Payments to Suppliers (111,607,805) (108,597,928)

Payments to or on Behalf of Employees (223,399,213) (203,763,272)

Payments to Students (98,045,615) (86,471,510)

Other Receipts (Payments) 6,027,528 4,033,456

net Cash PRovided (used) bY oPeRating aCtivities (232,094,634) (208,575,587)

Cash flows fRom (foR) nonCaPital finanCing aCtivities

State Appropriations 178,109,754 162,883,018

Receipts from Stafford Loan Proceeds 134,022,108 109,990,278

Payments from Stafford Loan Proceeds to Students/Financial Institutions (133,531,896) (110,108,896)

Other Nonoperating Receipts (Payments) 104,723,373 81,754,788

net Cash PRovided (used) bY nonCaPital finanCing aCtivities 283,323,339 244,519,188

Cash flow fRom (foR) CaPital & Related finanCing aCtivities

Capital Appropriations 1,449,040 3,536,826

Deposit With Trustee 26,039,311 (22,748,973)

Proceeds from Issuance of Capital Debt - 71,202,015

Purchase of Capital Assets          (52,635,286) (61,642,237)

Principal Paid on Capital-Related Debt (11,383,595) (16,193,475)

Interest Paid on Capital-Related Debt (6,295,325) (7,827,743)

net Cash PRovided (used) bY CaPital & Related finanCing aCtivities (42,825,855) (33,673,587)

Cash flow fRom (foR) investing aCtivities

  Purchase of Investments (76,500,000) (36,970,800)

  Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 36,970,800 27,000,000

  Income on Investments 5,310,029 6,138,227

n et Cash PRovided (used) bY investing aCtivities (34,219,171) (3,832,573)

 Net Increase in Cash (25,816,321) (1,562,559)

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 44,526,445 46,089,004

Cash and Cash equivalents – end of Year 18,710,124 44,526,445

ReConCiliation of net oPeRating Revenues (exPenses)  
to net Cash PRovided (used) bY oPeRating aCtivities

Net Operating Income (Loss) (258,726,060) (226,770,669)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating expenses

Depreciation 18,802,611 15,673,747

Amortization 317,671 286,692

Allowance for Bad Debt 554,963 436,709

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable (14,523,563) (5,031,572)

Inventories 7,595,830 (1,366,926)

Prepaid Expense (165,788) 24,141

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 9,387,247 5,593,176

Compensated Absences 1,162,618 988,991

Deferred Revenue 3,499,837 1,590,123

net Cash PRovided (used) bY oPeRating aCtivities $(232,094,634) $(208,575,587

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. General Information
Ivy Tech community college of Indiana is a statewide open-access, community college that provides residents of 
Indiana with professional, technical, transfer, and lifelong education for successful careers, personal development, 
and citizenship. Through its affordable, quality educational programs and services, the college strengthens Indiana’s 
economy and enhances its cultural development. The Indiana general assembly (by Ic 20-12-61-2) established Ivy 
Tech State college in 1963. In 2005 the general assembly adopted Senate Bill 296 which broadened the institution’s 
mission to include serving as the state’s community college system. Ivy Tech’s official name changed to “Ivy Tech 
community college of Indiana”. Ivy Tech is governed by a board of trustees, composed of fourteen (14) members, 
appointed by the governor. each member of the state board must have knowledge or experience in one (1) or more of 
the following areas; manufacturing; commerce; labor; agriculture; state and regional economic development needs; 
or Indiana’s educational delivery system. at least one (1) trustee must reside in each college region. appointments 
are made for three (3) year terms, on a staggered basis. Ivy Tech community college has fourteen main regional sites 
located across the State of Indiana. The President’s office and other statewide administrative offices are located in 
Indianapolis, Indiana.

Ivy Tech foundation (the foundation) was incorporated on June 9, 1969, under the Indiana foundations and holding 
companies act of 1921 as a corporation organized exclusively for charitable, educational and scientific purposes. The 
foundation, whose principal activity is to promote educational, scientific and charitable purposes in connection with 
or at the request of Ivy Tech community college (the college), commenced its financial activities with the receipt of 
various unrestricted contributions in october 1970 and provided $7.3 million to assist the college during fiscal year 
2007-08. The foundation currently operates under the Indiana nonprofit corporations law of 1971 as amended, 
which is codified as Ic 23-17. as required by the governmental accounting Standards Board (gaSB) number 39, 
the audited financial statements of the foundation are discretely presented with the college’s financial statements. 
The foundation’s fiscal year reporting period is from July 1 through June 30. It is important to note for comparison 
purposes that the foundation’s statements are prepared using the modified cash basis of accounting, while the 
college uses the accrual basis of accounting. The modified cash basis differs from the cash basis primarily because 
the foundation reflects investments and property and equipment purchased as assets on its Statements of assets, 
liabilities, and fund Balances. additionally, the foundation reports notes payable for the purchase of property 
and annuities payable as liabilities in its Statements of assets, liabilities and fund Balances. gains and losses on 
investments are recorded when realized. In addition to receiving cash contributions, the foundation receives non-
cash contributions including gifts of real estate. 

The foundation believes that modified cash-basis statements present the financial information in a more meaningful 
manner than accrual-basis statements and, accordingly is continuing its policy of presenting its financial statements 
on the modified cash basis of accounting. further information regarding the foundation may be obtained at Ivy Tech 
foundation, 50 West fall creek Parkway drive north, Indianapolis, In 46208-5752 or http://ivytech.edu/giving.

  With the implementation of governmental accounting Standards Boards (gaSB) Statement no. 35, Ivy Tech 
community college is considered a special purpose government. The college has elected to report as a business 
type activity using proprietary fund accounting and financial reporting model. The college is considered to be a 
component unit of the State of Indiana. 

as such there is a close relationship between the college and the State of Indiana. The college receives 
appropriations, program approvals and grants from the State.
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The financial statements have been prepared to incorporate all fund groups utilized internally by Ivy Tech 
community college. These statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the united States of america as prescribed by gaSB Statements no. 34 & 35. These Statements require 
the college to report revenues net of discounts and allowances. The following components of the college’s financial 
statements are also required by gaSB 34/35:

- management’s discussion and analysis 
-  Basic financial statements including a Statement of net assets, Statement of Revenues, 
 expenses and changes in net assets, and Statement of cash flows for the college as a whole

- notes to the financial statements  

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The college’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. eliminations have been made to prevent the double 
counting of internal activities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the united 
States of america requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during 
the reporting period. actual results could differ from those estimates.

The college utilizes the accounting standard of the establishment of an allowance for bad debt in the Statement of 
net assets to reflect receivables that are likely to be uncollectible.

operating revenues of the college consist of tuition and fees, non-financial aid grants and contracts, sales and 
services of educational activities and auxiliary enterprise revenues. Transactions related to financial aid grants, 
capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities, investing activities, and State appropriations 
are components of non-operating income. The prior bookstore inventories were valued based on a perpetual inventory 
or physical count system, with the majority utilizing the perpetual inventory method. The current year inventory was 
sold to follett higher education group, Inc. (follett) effective June 2008 in accordance with an agreement allowing 
for the operation of the college’s bookstores by follett. 

C. Capital Assets Accounting Policy Disclosure
The college’s capitalization threshold is defined as any non-expendable item, or group of items making up one unit, 
with a useful life of more than one year, and a unit acquisition cost of $3,000 or more. library books costing $35 or 
more are generally capitalized as a group, with the detail maintained and updated periodically as new acquisitions 
are made or other items are removed.

college capital equipment and facilities are depreciated on a “Straight line” basis dividing the cost of the asset by 
the appropriate useful life. Building improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the facilities to which 
they pertain. leasehold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the asset for capital leases and over 
the remaining life of the lease for operating leases.

Land Improvements 10 years

Buildings 40 years

Building Improvements Remaining life of the building

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3-8 years

Library Books and Materials 5 years
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Ivy Tech has a minimal amount of infrastructure assets that are components of buildings or land improvements and 
are depreciated accordingly.

If both restricted and unrestricted resources are to be expended for the same purpose or project the determination of 
the portion of the expenses paid from the restricted sources are made on a case-by-case basis.

D. Prepaid Assets
Prepaid assets are paid when due and the remaining value is reported as prepaid and consists of the following.
1.  Bond principal and interest payments    $13,986,460 
2.  advance payments to health insurance providers $   336,034
3.  other       $   193,037

II. Accrual of Loss Contingency

The college has been named a party in two matters of litigation in the state courts, three matters of litigation in the federal 
court, four matters with the Indiana civil Rights commission, and four matters with the equal employment opportunity 
commission. In the opinion of management, an unfavorable outcome in these matters will not have a material adverse affect 
on the balance sheet of the institution. management is currently unable to assess the probability of an unfavorable outcome.

III. Lease Obligations
 

The college has entered into certain operating leases for facilities, office furniture and equipment, vehicles, computing 
equipment, etc. many of these leases require payments in excess of one year from the date of initiation. The schedule on page 
54 provides the minimum future annual payments for those leases, which were in effect on June 30, 2008.

The college has several lease obligations with Ivy Tech foundation, Inc. which were determined to meet the requirements 
necessary to be recognized as capital leases, which are reflected in the college’s Statement of net assets. 

IV. Investments
   

Investment policies, as set forth by the State Board of Trustees, authorize certificates of deposits to be established not 
longer than five years. The bank must be insured by Public deposit Insurance fund (PdIf) or federal deposit Insured fund 
(fdIc). one bank’s deposits must not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the college’s total investment portfolio, and the total 
invested must not be more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined capital, surplus, and undivided profits of that bank. 
uS government Treasury Bills, notes, Bonds and agencies maturity dates cannot exceed five years or more. Repurchase 
agreement’s maximum maturity allowed is thirteen (13) days. Bankers’ acceptances cannot exceed one million dollars 
($1,000,000) and have a maturity date longer than one hundred eighty days (180). commercial Paper’s maximum maturity is 
two hundred seventy (270) days, must be rated at least a-1 or P-1 by the bond rating agencies, may not exceed fifty (50%) of 
the college total investments, no more than one million ($1,000,000) or ten percent (10%) of the college’s total investment, 
whichever is less, may be in vested in any one company at one time, and no more than twenty five percent (25%) of the total 
commercial Paper portfolio may be invested in a single industry. money market accounts are limited to funds with assets 
totaling at least two hundred fifty million ($250,000,000) or funds managed by Indiana banks insured by Public deposit 
Insurance fund (PdIf). all investments are unrated at June 30, 2008.

all investments owned by the college are held in safekeeping by the issuing or selling bank. Safekeeping receipts are held by 
the college. 

The college’s policy regarding the endowment investments are the same as the college’s investment policy, unless restricted 
by the endowment Trustee. 

Types of investments held by the college’s foundation, a component unit, are authorized by the foundation’s Board of 
Trustees. They include a broader selection of investments including domestic equities, certificates of deposit, money market 
accounts, interest bearing demand deposits insured by fdIc, uS government notes, Bills, Bonds, agencies, commercial 
Paper and donated real and personal property. 
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Investments held in the name of the college at June 30, 2008 consist of the following:

 investment maturities (Years)

investment type Rating fair market value less than 1 1-2 more than 2

Deposits: N/A

Certificate of Deposits $ 90,500,000 $32,500,000 $7,995,310 $50,004,690 

Investment:

US Government Agencies
Securities N/A 2,013,750 1,009,060 1,004,690 

Money Market N/A 13,534,390 13,534,390 

Total $106,048,140  $ 47,043,450  $9,000,000 $50,004,690

A. Credit Risk
The college’s investment policy requires that all bond investments have a Standard and Poor’s rating of a-1 or better 
or a moody’s Investors Service rating of P-1. 

B. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the fact that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. generally the longer the maturity of the investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes 
in market interest rate; one of the ways that the college manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing 
a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a 
portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash 
flow and liquidity needed for operations. The college’s policy for certificates of deposits, uS government Treasury 
Bills, notes, Bonds, and agency limit the maximum maturity to five years or less, thus limiting exposure to fair 
value losses arising from increasing interest rates. additionally it has been college practice to hold the investment 
instrument to maturity. 

C. Concentration of Credit Risk
In the allocation of assets, diversification of investments among asset classes that are not similarly affected by 
economic, political or social developments is a highly desirable objective of credit risk. Thus to avoid undue risk 
concentrations in any single asset class or investment category, the college’s policy requires that certificates of 
deposit at any one bank do not exceed thirty (30%) of the college’s total investment portfolio, the amount invested 
must not be more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined capital, surplus, and undivided profits of that bank, 
as determined from its last published report of condition, commercial Paper may not exceed fifty (50%) of total 
investments, no more than one million ($1,000,000) or ten percent (10%) of the college’s total investment, whichever 
is less, may be invested in any one company at one time, and no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
commercial Paper portfolio may be invested in a single industry. 

The financial institutions that hold five (5%) or more of the college’s investments at June 30, 2008 are listed below:

institutions Cost Percent of total invested

National City Bank $33,025,696 31.15%

Huntington Capital 18,000,000 16.98%

Lake City Bank 17,000,000 16.03%

Federated Investors 13,508,694 12.74%

Irwin Union Bank 9,000,000 8.49%

Key Bank 6,000,000 5.66%
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D. Foreign Currency Risk
The college does not hold foreign currency.

E. Custodial Credit Risk
The college certificates of deposits are all insured by Public deposit Insurance fund (PdIf) or federal deposit 
Insurance fund (fdIc) and money market accounts are limited to funds with assets totaling at least two hundred 
and fifty million ($250,000,000) or funds managed by Indiana banks insured by the Public deposit Insurance fund 
(PdIf).

V. Line Of Credit

The college has a line of credit in the amount of $3,000,000 with an Indiana financial institution. The college can draw against this 
agreement to meet certain working capital provisions. as of June 30, 2008, the college had not drawn against this line of credit.

VI. Post-Employment Benefits

all employees who retire between the age of 55 and up to but not including 65 with ten years of benefits-eligible service with 
the college or at the age of 65 or later with five years of benefits-eligible service with the college may continue participation 
in college group medical benefits. The entire cost of the post-employment benefits is the responsibility of the retiree and the 
college has no funding or costs incurred.

In addition, all employees who retire between the age of 55 and 65, and whose combined age and years of continuous benefit-
eligible service equal at least 75, may elect to remain in the college group medical and dental programs. Those who meet the 
above requirements and remain in the programs pay only 20% of the full premium expense. The college pays the remaining 
80% of the premium, and the expenditure is recognized when paid. during fiscal year 2007-08, expenditures of 
$361,074 were recognized for 50 employees who participated in the post-retirement health and dental care program. 

To enable employees to have paid time off as needed, college policy provides for the accrual of sick leave and vacation time for 
benefits-eligible employees. The college will pay to each eligible full-time employee a benefit at retirement equal to 50% of the 
employee’s unused sick leave accrual up to 100 days. an employee is eligible for this benefit if he is at least 55 years old and his 
age plus years of service equal 75 or more at retirement. There is no maximum age limit. accrued benefit for Sick leave is $3.6 
million.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The college’s annual other postemployment benefit 
(oPeB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (aRc), an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of the governmental accounting Standards 
Board Statement 45 accounting and financial Reporting 
by employers for Postemployment Benefits other than 
Pensions. The aRc represents a level of funding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities 
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
The following table shows the components of the college’s 
annual oPeB cost for the fiscal year, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the college’s net 
oPeB obligation to the plan:

ivY teCh CommunitY College

JulY 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008

Annual required contribution $3,568,508

Interest on net OPEB obligation -

Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost 3,568,508

Contributions made 361,074

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 3,207,434

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $3,207,434
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The college’s annual oPeB cost, the percentage of the annual oPeB cost contributed to the plan, and the net oPeB 
obligation for 2008 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Year ending annual oPeb Cost
Percentage of annual 

oPeb Cost Contributed net oPeb obligation

06-30-06 $  - N/A $   N/A

06-30-07 - N/A N/A

06-30-08 3,568,508 10% 3,207,434

Funded Status and Funding Progress
as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The  actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was $28,693,409, and the actuarial value of assets was $0.00 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(uaal) of $28,693,409. 

actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and 
the healthcare cost trend. amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions 
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. The Schedule of funding Progress, presented as required supplementary information following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Valuation Date Accrued Liability Unfunded Accrued Liability Funded Ratio

7/1/07 $28,693,409 $28,693,409 0.0%

Actuarial Methods and Assumption
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical 
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of asset, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2008 actuarial valuation, the unit credit actuarial cost method was used.  The actuarial assumptions included 
a 5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the employer’s own investments calculated based 
on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10% initially, reduced by 1% 
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 5 years.  Both rates included a 3% inflation assumption.  The uaal is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.  The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2008 
was 30 years.

VII. Accrued Vacation and Special Holiday

accrued time for vacation vests to a maximum. That maximum is equal to the amount accrued during the preceding 18 months. 
unused vacation time is paid out upon termination regardless of age or years of service. The computed college current portion 
of the liability for accumulated unused vacation pay as of June 30, 2008 is $5.1 million.

Because the college does not observe certain legal holidays available to employees of other Indiana state agencies, the college 
offers benefits-eligible administrative and Support staff employees one Special holiday per calendar quarter. The college has 
recently adopted a new Special holiday Policy. Special holiday hours are now included with vacation hours earned. Beginning 
in fiscal year 2003-04, college policy was established to pay out unused accrued Special holiday hours upon termination of an 
employee. as of June 30, 2008 the current portion of the liability was $1.1 million. 
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VIII. Retirement Plans

Ivy Tech community college’s State Board of Trustees has the authority to determine employee benefits and personnel 
policies. The following describes the retirement plans authorized by the college’s State Board of Trustees.

A. Teachers Insurance Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund
full-time faculty, professional, and administrative staff are eligible for participation in a retirement program 
with Teachers Insurance annuity association (TIaa) and college Retirement equities fund (cRef), defined 
contributions plan. This program is fully funded by the college.

The participation date for eligible employees is determined by their personnel position classification. members of 
TIaa and cRef may elect to allocate contributions to their account under several options. The allocation may be 
designated in whole or prescribed ratios to the fixed-dollar fund (TIaa) or to a diversified common stock fund(s) 
(cRef). during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, Ivy Tech community college paid $12,721,897 to TIaa/
cRef, representing $84,812,646 in total salaries. 

on June 30, 2008, there were 1,491 employees participating in this retirement program. further information may be 
obtained from TIaa/cRef by contacting them at 730 3rd avenue, new york, new york 10017-3206.

B. American United Life Retirement Option
In fiscal year 2002 the Ivy Tech State Board of Trustees approved the addition of new options to the college’s 
retirement plan offerings. The adoption of these options creates a greater opportunity for employees to diversify 
their investments. The new retirement plan, american united life Insurance company (aul), was added as an 
alternate direct vendor to receive college contributions to the defined contribution Retirement annuity (Ra) plan 
for eligible faculty and administrative employees. The Plan became effective on october 1, 2002; employees must 
choose between TIaa/cRef and aul. during fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, Ivy Tech community college 
paid $1,185,999 to aul, representing $7,906,663 in total salaries. on June 30, 2008, there were 120 employees 
participating in this retirement program. further information may be obtained from aul by contacting them at one 
american Square, P.o. Box 368, Indianapolis, In 46206-0368.
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C. Public Employees’ Retirement Fund

1. Plan Description
Ivy Tech community college contributes to the Public employees’ Retirement fund (PeRf), a defined benefit 
pension plan for certain employees of the State of Indiana. full-time non-exempt employees are eligible to 
participate in the defined benefit plan. on June 30, 2008, 840 employees of Ivy Tech community college were 
members of this retirement plan. State statutes (Ic 5-10.2 and 5-10.3) govern most requirements of the system 
and give Ivy Tech authority to contribute to the plan. 

The PeRf retirement benefit consists of the pension provided by employer contributions plus an annuity 
provided by the member’s annuity savings account. The annuity savings account consists of member’s 
contributions set by state statute at three percent of compensation, plus the interest credited to the member’s 
account. Ivy Tech community college has elected to make the contributions on behalf of the eligible members. 
The college contributed $689,341 to individual employee annuity accounts in the Indiana Public employees’ 
Retirement fund (PeRf) for the year ended June 30, 2008.

PeRf administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for its participants. The report may be 
obtained by writing the Public employees Retirement fund, harrison Building, Room 800, 143 West market 
Street, Indianapolis, In 46204, or by calling (317) 233-4162. 

2. Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost
The Board of Trustees of PeRf establishes the contribution requirements of plan members. Ivy Tech 
community college’s annual pension cost for the 2008 fiscal year and related information, as provided by the 
actuary is presented in this note. The amount of retirement costs associated with the employee share, $689,341, 
is not included in the following information.

ivY teCh CommunitY College

PeRf
Annual Required Contribution $1,126,256 Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Obligation $25,411

Interest on Net Pension Obligation (75,123) Net Pension Obligation, Beginning of Year  (1,036,181)  

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution 85,609 Net Pension Obligation, End of Year $(1,010,770)

Annual Pension Cost-Employers Share Only 1,136,742

Contributions Made – Employers Share Only $1,111,331

College Contributions: 9.3% Asset Valuation Method: 4-Year Smoothed Market

Total College Contributions Includes a 3% Member Share Investment Rate of Return: 7.25%

Plan Members: 810 Projected Future Salary Increases:  Total 5%

Actuarial Valuation Date: 07/01/07 Attributed to Inflation: 4%

Actuarial Cost Method:  Entry Age Attributed to Merit/Seniority: 1%

Amortization Method: Level Percentage of Projected Payroll, Closed Remaining Amortization Period: 30 Years

Amortization Period (from date): 07/01/97

Cost-of-Living Adjustments: 2%
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

thRee YeaR tRend infoRmation (PeRf)
Year ending annual Pension Cost (aPC) Percentage of aPC Contributed net Pension obligation

06/30/05 732,487 99% (1,105,115)

06/30/06 964,388 93% (1,036,181)

06/30/07 1,136,742 98% (1,010,770)

ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedules of funding PRoCess PubliC emPloYees RetiRement fund

actuarial 
valuation date

actuarial value 
of assets

actuarial 
accrued 
liability

excess of 
assets over 

(unfunded) aal
funded Ratio

Covered 
Payroll

excess (unfunded) 
aal %

07/01/05 15,195,527 15,503,797 (308,270) 98.01% 17,831,760 (1.73%)

07/01/06 18,573,945 18,922,865 (348,920) 98.20% 18,596,192 (1.88%)

07/01/07 21,057,068 20,708,476 348,592 101.7% 19,898,143 0.00%
 

D. Federal Social Security Act
all employees (except work-study students) are members of and are covered upon employment by the old age and 
Survivors Insurance and medical Insurance Provisions of the federal Social Security act.

IX. Capital Assets
 

Property, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost on the date of acquisition or at fair market value at the time of donation. 
assets used by the college which are subject to capital lease obligations are recorded at the net present value of the minimum 
lease payments of the asset at inception of the lease. The college has adopted the provisions of Statement of financial 
accounting Standards no. 93, which requires the recording of depreciation on long-lived tangible assets.

capital asset activity for the year .ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

beginning balance additions Reductions ending balance

Land $     18,988,696 $          438,666 $           -     $   19,427,362 

Construction work in progress 40,496,562 8,158,138 38,054,085 10,600,615 

Land improvements and infrastructure 10,067,885 1,136,515 508,226 10,696,174 

Buildings 342,922,199 63,393,803 1,802,365 404,513,637 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 53,792,805 10,281,642 3,248,481 60,825,966 

Library materials 1,903,975 200,690  121,704 1,982,961 

Total 468,172,122 83,609,454 43,734,861 508,046,715 

Less accumulated depreciation:

Land improvements and infrastructure 6,240,218 976,348 395,774 6,820,792 

Buildings 81,888,348 11,173,815 1,559,165 91,502,998 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 38,566,907 5,261,294 3,173,959 40,654,242 

Library materials 1,780,887 46,059 97,170 1,729,776 

Total accumulated depreciation 128,476,360 17,457,516 5,226,068 140,707,808 

Capital assets, net $   339,695,762 $    66,151,938 $    38,508,793 $ 367,338,907 
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Construction Work In Progress
The following table presents the construction projects in process as of June 30, 2008.

Portage – Region 01 Planning 247,142

Ft Wayne – Region 03 A&E  2,011,861

Logansport – Region 05 Planning 1,118,317

Greencastle – Region 07 Planning 1,077,768

Indianapolis – Region 08 Fall Creek Expansion 1,503,70

Lawrenceburg – Lawrenceburg Gaming 194,017

Indianapolis – Life Cost Study 58,600

Richmond – Insurance Refund 120,053

Various Repair & Rehabilitation & Parking Lot Projects 2,481,203

Integrated Information System (IIS) 1,715,835

Restricted Grant/Contracts 72,116

total Construction work in Progress $ 10,600,615

X. Long Term Liabilities

Primary institution

beginning balance additions Reductions ending balance Current Portion

Leases, notes, and bonds payable:

Lease Obligations $11,750,448 $2,194,338 $491,766 $13,453,020 $559,812

Notes Payable 18,215,000 - 1,080,000 17,135,000 10,389,000

Revenue bonds payable:

Series E student fee bonds 7,575,000 - 1,035,000 6,540,000 1,085,000

Bond yield 4.55% - 5.35%

Series G student fee bonds 33,505,000 - 3,455,000 30,050,000 2,715,000 

Bond yield 1.93% - 4.93%

Series H student fee bonds 42,615,000 - 2,310,000 40,305,000 2,370,000 

Bond Yield 1.32% - 3.96%

Series I student fee bonds 38,430,000 - 1,610,000 36,820,000 1,590,000 

Bond Yield 2.3% - 4.55%

Series J student fee bonds 9,245,000 - - 9,245,000 -

Bond Yield 4.25% - 4.47%

Series K student fee bonds 60,670,000 - 1,910,000 58,760,000 1,985,000

Bond Yield 3.76% - 4.74%

Total bonds payable 192,040,000 - 10,320,000 181,720,000 9,745,000 

Premium on Bonds-Series H, I, J,K 6,339,046 - 426,450 5,912,596 426,452 

Total leases, notes, & bonds payable 228,344,494 2,194,338 12,318,216 218,220,616 21,120,264

Other liabilities:

Compensated absences 9,391,654 7,465,422 6,302,804 10,554,272 6,935,100

Other post employment benefits - 3,207,434 - 3,207,434 638,353

Total other liabilities 9,391,654 10,672,856 6,302,804 13,761,706 7,573,453

total long-term liabilities  $237,736,148 $12,867,194 $18,621,020  $231,982,322 $28,693,717 
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A. Notes Payable
The college has issued interim financing notes as a means of providing funds for acquisition and/or  construction 
of facilities as more fully described below. on July 1, 2007 interim financing agreements totaling $18,215,000 were 
outstanding. during 2007-08, the college made principal payments totaling $1,080,000 which was $59,000 greater 
than the scheduled payment of $1,021,000. The June 30, 2008 principal balance was $17,135,000.

location balance 6-30-07 Principal Paid 2007-08 new debt 2007-08 balance 6-30-08

Lafayette  $7,770,000 $503,000   $     - $7,267,000

Indianapolis 10,445,000 577,000 - 9,868,000

totals $18,215,000 $1,080,000   $     - $17,135,000

Indianapolis. In october 2003, the college entered into an interim financing agreement in the amount of 
$11,000,000 with a maturity of november 3, 2008 for the acquisition and partial renovation of the fairbanks center 
in lawrence, Indiana. The interest rate is fixed at 3.48% per annum for the entire term of the loan. The interest 
expense is paid quarterly. at the november 3, 2008 maturity, the loan will be refinanced with proceeds from the 
series l Bond Issue. 

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2009 9,868,000 177,427  10,045,427 $       -

totals $9,868,000 $177,427 $10,045,427

  

Lafayette Phase III. In January 2007, the college entered into an interim financing agreement in the amount of 
$7,960,000 with a maturity of January 05, 2012, for the refinancing of a major campus expansion and renovation in 
lafayette, Indiana. upon maturity the loan will be refinanced by the issuance of permanent financing or additional junior 
lien financing or repaid from student fees. under the terms of the loan agreement, the college pays a fixed interest rate 
of 3.75% per annum for the entire term of the loan. The interest expense is paid semi-annually. The college will make 
principal payments annually according to the following schedule.

ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
lafayette Phase iii interim financing agreement – 

$7,960,000 original loan amount

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2009 521,000 272,513 793,513 6,746,000

2010 541,000 252,975 793,975 6,205,000

2011 561,000 232,688 793,688 5,644,000

2012 5,644,000 125,814 5,769,814

totals $7,267,000 $883,990 $8,150,990

B. Refunded Bond Issues 
In prior years, the college defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust 
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. accordingly, the trust accounts and the liability for 
the defeased bonds are not included in the college’s financial statements. at June 30, 2008, $22,230,000 of bonds 
outstanding is considered defeased. 
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C. Premium On Bonds
The June 30, 2007 Premium on Bonds of $6,339,046 is the remaining balance from the sale of Series h, I, J, and 
Student fee Bonds. The ending balance of $5,912,595 is being amortized over the remaining life of the related 
bonds.

D. Bond Schedules

ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
seRies e of 1997, advanCed Refunding seRies g of 2002,

seRies h of 2003, seRies i and seRies J of 2005, seRies K of 2007.  

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2009 9,745,000.00 8,291,783.00 18,036,783.00 171,975,000.00 

2010 10,170,000.00 7,876,464.75 18,046,464.75 161,805,000.00 

2011 10,630,000.00 7,411,869.88 18,041,869.88   151,175,000.00 

2012 11,135,000.00 6,913,263.13 18,048,263.13 140,040,000.00 

2013 11,655,000.00 6,378,216.25 18,033,216.25 128,385,000.00

2014-2018 56,265,000.00 23,992,746.00 80,257,746.00 72,120,000.00

2019-2023 41,780,000.00 11,858,660.00 53,638,660.00 30,340,000.00

2024-2027 30,340,000.00 2,928,787.50 33,268,787.50 0.00

totals $181,720,000.00 $75,651,790.51 $257,371,790.51

XI. Property Subject To Capital Leases 

The college has several lease obligations with Ivy Tech foundation, Inc, which were determined to meet the requirements 
necessary to be recognized as capital leases; thus requiring the recognition of long-term debt and capital assets on the 
college’s Statement of net assets. Ivy Tech foundation, Inc. believes these leases are operating leases and that they own the 
property and therefore reports the assets in their financial statements. Therefore, the foundation also shows these assets in 
their Statements of assets, liabilities, and fund Balance, which are incorporated herein. consequently, the college and the 
foundation have reported the same capital assets on their respective financial statements.

XII.  Restatement of Prior Year Balances – Note Disclosure

There was an accounting principal change effective June 30, 2008. Therefore, the prior year 2007 balances were adjusted 
for comparison purposes. There were two changes, restricted financial aid revenue was moved from operating to non-
operating revenue and expenses related to uncollectable accounts were moved from an expense category to a reduction of 
revenue. additionally when the college’s fixed assets were converted to our new fixed assets accounting system there was 
a reclassification between noncurrent assets and noncurrent liabilities relating to prior periods that affected the net asset 
statement only.
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adJustments to statement of net assets

Category beginning balance adjustments adjusted beginning balance

Capital Assets, Net $341,092,367 $(1,396,603) $339,695,764

Total Noncurrent Assets $362,130,916 $(1,396,603) $360,734,313

Total Assets $521,710,827 $(1,396,603) $520,314,224

Long Term Debt and other Obligations $216,098,924 $(1,396,603) $214,702,321

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $219,043,155 $(1,396,603) $217,646,552

total liabilities $263,040,267 $(1,396,603) $261,643,664

The affect of this entry was a reduction in total assets of .3% and a reduction in total liabilities of .5%. There was no change in 
total net assets.

adJustments to statement of Revenues, exPenses and Changes in net assets

Category beginning balance adjustments
adjusted 

beginning balance

Operating Revenues: Student Tuition and Fees $133,622,079 $(2,261,174) $131,360,905

Net Student Tuition and Fees $104,766,487 $(2,261,174) $102,505,313

Federal Grants and Contracts $72,077,735 $(69,006,826) $3,070,909

State and Local Grants and Contracts $22,008,657 $(12,227,873) $9,780,784

Total Operating Revenues $241,961,260 $(83,495,873) $158,465,387

Operating Expenses: Supplies and Other Services $102,920,871 $(2,261,174) $100,659,697

Total Operating Expenses $387,497,230 $(2,261,174) $385,236,056

Operating Loss $(145,535,970) $(81,234,699) $(226,770,669)

Non-operating Revenue: Governmental Grants and Contracts – Federal $0.00 $69,006,826 $69,006,826

Non-operating Revenue: Governmental Grants and Contracts – State $0.00 $12,227,873 $12,227,873

Net Operating Revenues $157,636,104 $81,234,699 $238,870,803

The changes on this statement were related to the change in accounting policies of moving restricted financial aid from 
operating to non-operating revenues and expenses and the movement of the expenses related to uncollectable accounts from 
an expense to a reduction of revenue.

adJustments to statement of Cash flows

Category beginning balance adjustments adjusted beginning balance

Cash Flows from (For) Operating Activities – Gifts, Grants 
and Contracts

$106,189,142 $(81,234,699) $24,954,443

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $(127,340,888) $(81,234,699) $(208,575,587)

Cash Flows From (For) Non-Capital Financing Activities – 
Other Non-Operating Receipts (Payments)

$520,089 $81,234,699 $81,754,788

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities $163,284,489 $81,234,699 $244,519,188

Cash Flow From (For) Capital and Related Financing Activities 
– Proceeds from Issuance of Capital Debt

$69,589,496 $1,612,519 $71,202,015

Cash Flow From (For) Capital and Related Financing Activities 
– Purchase of Capital Assets

$(60,029,717) $(1,612,520) $(61,642,237)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) to Net 
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities – Net Operating 
Income (Loss)

$(145,535,970) $(81,234,699) $(226,770,669)

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) to Net 
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities – Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$(127,340,888) $(81,234,699) $(208,575,587)
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The following information is presented as additional data and is not subject  
to the audit opinion expressed by the Indiana State Board of accounts. These reports  

were prepared by the management of Ivy Tech community college.
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ivY teCh CommunitY College auxiliaRY enteRPRise booKstoRe

ComPaRative statement of net assets
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007

assets fY 2008 fY 2007

Current Assets

Cash $14,679,484 $13,414,223

Accounts Receivable 9,842,844 2,695,296 

Allowance for Bad Debt (904,832) (784,097) 

Credit Memos 7,564,968 415,781 

Inventory - 7,522,454 

total assets 31,182,464 23,263,657 

liabilities

Current Liabilities

Wages Payable 71,947 54,688 

Indiana Sales Tax Payable - (2,136)

Accounts Payable 8,027,125 255,689

total liabilities 8,099,072 308,241

net assets

Unrestricted

total net assets $23,083,392 $22,955,416

The accomPanyIng noTeS aRe an InTegRal PaRT of The fInancIal STaTemenTS
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ivY teCh CommunitY College auxiliaRY enteRPRise booKstoRe

ComPaRative statement of Revenues, exPenses and Changes in net assets
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007

fY 2008 fY 2007

Operating Revenues:

Sales $41,920,135 $32,976,167

Cost of Goods Sold:

Beginning Inventory 7,522,454 6,152,923

Add:

Purchases 34,772,588 30,003,326

Freight-in 983,658 579,042

Less:

Vendor Returns (9,766,324) (4,347,559)

Total Available for Sale 33,512,376 32,387,732

Less: Ending Inventory - 7,522,454

Cost of Goods Sold 33,512,376 79.943% 24,865,278 75.404%

Gross Margin on Sales 8,407,759 20.057% 8,110,889 24.596%

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages 2,166,998 1,902,893 

Benefits 708,216 609,755

Operating Overhead 106,854 103,810

Uncollected Std Fee 908,568 882,223 

Gain/Loss on Disp of Asset 179,734 - 

Capital DP Equipment 49,327 31,271

Other Expenses 1,117,233 962,746

Total Operating Expenses 5,236,930 12.493% 4,492,708 13.624%

Changes in Operating Income 3,170,829 7.564% 3,618,181 10.972%

Net Assets-beginning of the year 22,955,416 20,433,251

Less Transfers (3,042,854) (1,096,016)

net assets-end of the year $23,083,392 $22,955,416 

The accomPanyIng noTeS aRe an InTegRal PaRT of The fInancIal STaTemenTS.
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
south bend series e of 1997 - original issue $16,260,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 1,035,000.00 358,485.00 1,393,485.00 6,540,000.00 

2009 1,085,000.00 305,485.00 1,390,485.00 5,455,000.00 

2010 1,145,000.00 249,448.75 1,394,448.75 4,310,000.00 

2011 1,200,000.00 190,284.38 1,390,284.38 3,110,000.00 

2012 1,265,000.00 127,615.63 1,392,615.63 1,845,000.00

2013 1,330,000.00 61,118.75 1,391,118.75 515,000.00

2014 515,000.00 13,518.75 528,518.75 $0.00 

totals $7,575,000.00 $1,305,956.26 $8,880,956.26 

ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRement foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
series g advance Refunding of series d and f (ft. wayne, bloomington, lafayette Phase i) - original issue - $46,370,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 3,455,000.00 1,505,063.00 4,960,063.00 30,050,000.00 

2009 2,715,000.00 1,350,813.00 4,065,813.00 27,335,000.00 

2010 2,845,000.00 1,222,481.00 4,067,481.00 24,490,000.00 

2011 2,975,000.00 1,095,088.00 4,070,088.00 21,515,000.00 

2012 3,120,000.00 950,150.00 4,070,150.00 18,395,000.00 

2013 3,275,000.00 790,275.00 4,065,275.00 15,120,000.00 

2014 3,435,000.00 631,113.00 4,066,113.00 11,685,000.00 

2015 3,600,000.00 471,025.00 4,071,025.00 8,085,000.00 

2016 2,605,000.00 327,008.00 2,932,008.00 5,480,000.00 

2017 2,730,000.00 200,270.00 2,930,270.00 2,750,000.00 

2018 2,750,000.00 67,375.00 2,817,375.00 $0.00
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRement foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
series h Richmond Phase i, evansville, valparaiso, terre haute - original issue - $47,065,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 2,310,000.00 1,961,050.00 4,271,050.00 40,305,000.00

2009 2,370,000.00 1,899,587.50 4,269,587.50 37,935,000.00

2010 2,450,000.00 1,820,250.00 4,270,250.00 35,485,000.00

2011 2,545,000.00 1,722,600.00 4,267,600.00 32,940,000.00

2012 2,660,000.00 1,606,850.00 4,266,850.00 30,280,000.00

2013 2,795,000.00 1,472,125.00 4,267,125.00 27,485,000.00

2014 2,940,000.00 1,328,750.00 4,268,750.00 24,545,000.00

2015 3,090,000.00 1,178,000.00 4,268,000.00 21,455,000.00

2016 3,250,000.00 1,019,500.00 4,269,500.00 18,205,000.00

2017 3,415,000.00 852,875.00 4,267,875.00 14,790,000.00

2018 3,590,000.00 677,750.00 4,267,750.00 11,200,000.00

2019 3,780,000.00 488,775.00 4,268,775.00 7,420,000.00

2020 3,985,000.00 284,943.75 4,269,943.75 3,435,000.00

2021 3,435,000.00 90,168.75 3,525,168.75 $0.00

totals $42,615,000.00 $16,403,225.00 $59,018,225.00

ivY teCh CommunitY College

seRies i sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
evansville, valparaiso, madison, and Portage - original issue - $39,650,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 1,610,000.00 1,600,820.00 3,210,820.00 36,820,000.00

2009 1,590,000.00 1,552,820.00 3,142,820.00 35,230,000.00

2010 1,655,000.00 1,487,595.00 3,142,595.00 33,575,000.00

2011 1,740,000.00 1,402,720.00 3,142,720.00 31,835,000.00

2012 1,820,000.00 1,327,370.00 3,147,370.00 30,015,000.00

2013 1,885,000.00 1,257,820.00 3,142,820.00 28,130,000.00

2014 1,965,000.00 1,180,820.00 3,145,820.00 26,165,000.00

2015 2,055,000.00 1,090,145.00 3,145,145.00 24,110,000.00

2016 2,160,000.00 984,770.00 3,144,770.00 21,950,000.00

2017 2,260,000.00 883,875.00 3,143,875.00 19,690,000.00

2018 2,355,000.00 788,113.75 3,143,113.75 17,335,000.00

2019 2,455,000.00 691,375.00 3,146,375.00 14,880,000.00

2020 2,555,000.00 592,402.50 3,147,402.50 12,325,000.00

2021 2,660,000.00 486,722.50 3,146,772.50 9,665,000.00

2022 0.00 432,242.50 432,242.50 9,665,000.00

2023 0.00 432,242.50 432,242.50 9,665,000.00

2024 0.00 432,242.50 432,242.50 9,665,000.00

2025 2,760,000.00 371,522.50 3,131,522.50 6,905,000.00

2026 3,375,000.00 235,708.75 3,610,708.75 3,530,000.00

2027 3,530,000.00 80,307.50 3,610,307.50 $ 0.00

$38,430,000.00 $17,311,685.00  $55,741,685.00
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
series J Richmond and marion - original issue - $9,245,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2009 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2010 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2011 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2012 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2013 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2014 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2015 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2016 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2017 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2018 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2019 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2020 0.00 462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2021 0.00  462,250.00 462,250.00 9,245,000.00

2022 2,780,000.00 392,750.00 3,172,750.00 6,465,000.00

2023 2,925,000.00 250,125.00 3,175,125.00 3,540,000.00

2024 3,075,000.00 100,125.00 3,175,125.00 465,000.00

2025 465,000.00 11,625.00 476,625.00 $0.00

$9,245,000.00 $7,226,125.00 $16,471,125.00
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
series K valparaiso Phase ii, marion Construction and madison Construction

original issue - $60,670,000

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 1,910,000.00 2,798,727.50 4,708,727.50 58,760,000.00

2009 1,985,000.00 2,720,827.50 4,705,827.50 56,775,000.00

2010 2,075,000.00 2,634,440.00 4,709,440.00 54,700,000.00

2011 2,170,000.00 2,538,927.50 4,708,927.50 52,530,000.00

2012 2,270,000.00 2,439,027.50 4,709,027.50 50,260,000.00

2013 2,370,000.00 2,334,627.50 4,704,627.50 47,890,000.00

2014 2,480,000.00 2,225,502.50 4,705,502.50 45,410,000.00

2015 2,590,000.00 2,117,902.50 4,707,902.50 42,820,000.00

2016 2,695,000.00 2,012,202.50 4,707,202.50 40,125,000.00

2017 2,820,000.00 1,887,802.50 4,707,802.50 37,305,000.00

2018 2,965,000.00 1,743,177.50 4,708,177.50 34,340,000.00

2019 3,115,000.00 1,591,177.50 4,706,177.50 31,225,000.00

2020 3,275,000.00 1,431,427.50 4,706,427.50 27,950,000.00

2021 3,435,000.00 1,270,982.50 4,705,982.50 24,515,000.00

2022 3,600,000.00 1,107,812.50 4,707,812.50 20,915,000.00

2023 3,780,000.00 928,712.50 4,708,712.50 17,135,000.00

2024 3,970,000.00 737,462.50 4,707,462.50 13,165,000.00

2025 4,170,000.00 536,462.50 4,706,462.50 8,995,000.00

2026 4,390,000.00 319,718.75 4,709,718.75 4,605,000.00

2027 4,605,000.00 103,612.50 4,708,612.50 $0.00

$60,670,000.00 $33,480,533.75 $94,150,533.75
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of annual RequiRements foR PRinCiPal and inteRest
seRies e of 1997, advanCed Refunding seRies g of 2002, seRies h of 2003,

seRies i and seRies J of 2005, seRies K of 2007. (1) and inteRest

Year ending June 30 Principal interest total outstanding Principal balance

2008 10,320,000.00 8,686,395.50 19,006,395.50 181,720,000.00

2009 9,745,000.00 8,291,783.00 18,036,783.00 171,975,000.00

2010 10,170,000.00 7,876,464.75 18,046,464.75 161,805,000.00

2011 10,630,000.00 7,411,869.88 18,041,869.88 151,175,000.00

2012 11,135,000.00 6,913,263.13 18,048,263.13 140,040,000.00

2013 11,655,000.00 6,378,216.25 18,033,216.25 128,385,000.00

2014 11,335,000.00 5,841,954.25 17,176,954.25 117,050,000.00

2015 11,335,000.00 5,319,322.50 16,654,322.50 105,715,000.00

2016 10,710,000.00 4,805,730.50 15,515,730.50 95,005,000.00

2017 11,225,000.00 4,287,072.50 15,512,072.50 83,780,000.00

2018 11,660,000.00 3,738,666.25 15,398,666.25 72,120,000.00

2019 9,350,000.00 3,233,577.50 12,583,577.50 62,770,000.00

2020 9,815,000.00 2,771,023.75 12,586,023.75 52,955,000.00

2021 9,530,000.00 2,310,173.75 11,840,173.75 43,425,000.00

2022 6,380,000.00 1,932,805.00 8,312,805.00 37,045,000.00

2023 6,705,000.00 1,611,080.00 8,316,080.00 30,340,000.00

2024 7,045,000.00 1,269,830.00 8,314,830.00 23,295,000.00

2025 7,395,000.00 919,610.00 8,314,610.00 15,900,000.00

2026 7,765,000.00 555,427.50 8,320,427.50 8,135,000.00

2027 8,135,000.00 183,920.00 8,318,920.00 0.00

totals $192,040,000.00 $84,338,186.01 $276,378,186.01
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

sChedule of futuRe minimum PaYments on oPeRating leases
June 30, 2008

  2008-09   2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2013 and beyond
Facilities  $4,616,570  $2,822,168  $1,512,383  $1,214,047 $10,017,776

Office furniture and Equipment 269,094    157,454     69,671 11,033          -

total  $4,885,664  $2,979,622  $1,582,054  $1,225,080 $10,017,776 

sChedule of student finanCial aid exPendituRes foR YeaR ended June 30, 2008
with Comparative figures at June 30, 2007

Current unrestricted Current Restricted 06/30/08 total 06/30/07 total

Workstudy (1)        $381,998     $1,110,789   $1,492,787   $1,689,282 

Scholarship/Fellowship(2) -     78,792,629  78,792,629   67,684,663 

Grants (3)   625,145  14,280,064  14,905,209 12,936,071 

Fee Remissions       4,178,091          -   4,178,091  3,674,426 

Administrative Allowance (4)   370,445          -    370,445 368,678 

total financial aid expenses       $5,555,679     $94,183,482   $99,739,161  $86,353,120

(1)  The $381,998 is comprised of the institutional share of both the federal and State college Workstudy Programs in the 
amount of $379,723 and $2,275 respectfully. The prior year institutional share for the federal and State Programs were 
$418,311 and $8,588 respectfully.

(2)  The amount of $78,792,629 includes $76,308,704 of Pell grants as compared to $65,516,445 for the prior year. The college 
has no choice in determining the recipients for the Pell grant Program.

(3)  The $625,145 represents the college share of the Supplemental educational opportunity grant (Seog match).

(4)  administrative allowance is made up of $69,933 federal Work-Study, $183,875 Pell, and $116,637 federal Supplemental 
educational opportunity grant (fSeog).
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ivY teCh CommunitY College

five YeaR tRend in student enRollment

—————————————————— actual ——————————————————

2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08*

Credit student - full time  24,715  32,007  33,012  35,804  39,121

Part time  77,557  73,756  72,436  75,339  79,932

total  102,272 105,763 105,448 111,143 119,053

fte  40,913  42,426  43,088 45,857  49,445

non-Credit students  21,250  23,424  20,275 20,630  23,543

*Estimated

Credit Students

The above information reports students on an “unduplicated” basis for full Time, Part Time, and the Total categories. fTe 
reports these students on a “full-time equivalent” basis. for purposes of student count, the above full time data includes 
individuals who enrolled in 12 or more credit hours for a single term, or 24 or more credit hours for two or more terms.

Non-Credit Students

The above information for non-credit students represents total unduplicated non-credit registrations during the fiscal year. 
This includes custom training courses as well as open enrollment in both professional development and personal enrichment 
courses.



50



51



52

www.Ivytech.edu


